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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
;;:'/'““3 required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
Wted to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
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as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(B)

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on its financial
yosjtion in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 (A) to the financial statements;
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ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;
iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified

bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions mandated
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to Company, since the Company is
a Private Limited Company.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
C hartel ed Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W- 100022

B 1t “’:t?:/f

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner

Mumbai Membership No.: 042070
26 May 2020 ICAT UDIN: 20042070AAAABM3269
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11i.

VI.

Vil.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified by the management in a phased manner over a period of three years. In
accordance with this programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the
Company. In respect of the leasehold land disclosed as Right of use asset in the financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the
lessee in the agreement.

The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical
stock and the book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of
accounts.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any loan, made any investment, given any guarantee, or provided any security under section
185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Act for any of the products manufactured or services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Professional tax, Income-tax, Duty of
customs, Goods and service tax and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited
during the year with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Duty of customs, Goods and service tax and other
imaterial statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months
[&"“"}1 the date they became payable.

1%
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viil.

X1.

Xil.

xiii.

XIv.

XV.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the following dues have not been
deposited by the Company on account of disputes:

Name of statute Nature of Amount | Amount | Period Forum where
dues demanded unpaid dispute is pending
(Rs.) (Rs.)
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income tax 1,828,650 | 240,489 | A.Y.2010-11 | Income Tax

Appellate Tribunal

Gujarat Value Added | Value Added 3,874,354 | 760,732 | F.Y.2007-08 | Gujarat VAT

Tax Act, 2003 Tax (VAT) Tribunal,
Ahmedabad

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
have any outstanding dues to bankers, government, financial institution and debenture holders during
the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to Company.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (Including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanation given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, notices or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the management.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions mandated
under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to Company, since the Company is
a Private Limited Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company as prescribed under section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards. Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xiv) of the order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
ﬁiﬁn}ccted with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xvi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,

paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Pariner

Membership No.: 042070

ICAT UDIN: 20042070AAAABM3269

Mumbai
26 May 2020
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Zydus Hospira

Oncology Private Limited (the ‘Company’) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “‘Guidance Note’).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Act’).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing (the ‘Standards’), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
Wit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

2. .40 als

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Parmer

Mumbai Membership No.: 042070
26 May 2020 ICAI UDIN: 20042070AAAABM3269



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2020

In millions of INR

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right ol use assels
Capital work-in-progress
Tntangible asscts
Intangible asscts under development
Financial asseis

Loans
Deferred tax asscts (net)
Other non-current asscis
Income 1ax asscts (net)

Current assets
Inventorics
Financia! asscls
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash cquivalents
Loans
Other financial asscts
Other current nssels

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equily share capital
Other equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Other financial liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial linbilitics
Tradc payables
Due Lo micro, small and medium colerprisc
Duc to other than micro, small and medium enicrprise
Other financial liabilitics

Other current liabilitics

Provisions

Total equity and liabilities

The notes referred lo above forms an integral part of the financial stalements.

As per our report of even dalc atiached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Avcoutigrs
Firm's Registration §o: lOlZ4BW/W-|rnf::'

2. % “

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Partner
Membership No: 042070

Place : Mumbai
Dalc : 26 May 2020

44
4B
4C
54
5B

© =

"

12
13

EIRNIECN

16

17
19

Asat
31 March 2020

Asol
31 March 2019

818.97 88708
57.25 ”
274.60 210.32
29.80 3356
- 230
0.13 0.15
279.03 476,98
25.45 1215
92.40 94.76
1.577.63 171730
1,106.78 1.341 88
620.95 33999
57294 624.34
454.06 582,39
2.87 1.24
63.10 217.88
25.03 13.63
284573 3;121.33
442336 4.538.63
150.00 150.00
402244 4, 1160
417244 A, 349600
o
23.64 16.46
0.57 037
4.1 [(oEE]
6.84 940
168.83 30413
36.49 148 10
6.03 412
3.52 (47
216,71 47212
—
4,423,306 WKINGE

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

olin Francis Ke
Chairman
DIN No, 07328087

a{& F

Swnti
Company Sccretary

Ploce : Ahmedabad
Dale 26 May 2020
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Wi
DIN Mo, (B2HRA2S
~

Harshendea Punja
VP Finance amd Acconnts

CIN: U24230GJ2005PTC046246

-
Ranjit Menon
= it Preceor




Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2020

In millions of INR
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Income
Revenue from operations 2/ 2,284.44 2,645.64
Other income 22 166,08 22511
Total income 2,450.52 2RT0,75
Expenses
Cost of malerial consumed 23 1,238.04 1,306.72
Change in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress 24 -2.72 1.66
Employce benefit expenses 25 260.22 24233
Depreciation and amorlisalion expense 26 109.14 144,03
Other expenses 27 37041 S60.38
Total expenses 1.984.09 2,355.12
Profit before tax 466.43 615.63
Tax expenses

- Current tax 28 122.48 13267

- MAT credit written off 8 162.10 -

- Deferred lax charge/(credit) 8 442 740
Total tax expense 250,16 L4007
Profit after tax 186.27 475.56

Other comprehensive income (OC1)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurcments of defined benefit plan -2.49 181
Income tax on remeasurment of defined benefit plan 0,73 -0.63
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax -1.76 118
Total comprehensive income for the year 184.51 476.74
Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each)
Basic and diluted (in INR) 29 12.42 3170
The noles referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of ¢ven date altached
ForBSR & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartervd Accountiisity Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Firm's Registration) No: [{T24RW/AN- ooz CIN: U24230GJ2005PTC046246
% < H N
v
Bhavesh Dhupelia John Francis Kelly Ranjit Menon
Partner Chairman Whole Time Director
Membership No: 042070 DPIN No. 07328087 DIN No. 08288625
®

Swati Hivrshend e Punm

Compayy Secrerary VP Finance amd Accounis
Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Dalc : 26 May 2020 Date : 26 May 2020
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2020

In millions of INR

A. Equity share capital

Balance al the beginning of the reporting year
Changes in equily share capital during the year
Balance as at the end of the reporting year

B. Other equity

Balance as at 1 April 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2019
Profit for the year

Remeasurement of defined benefil obligation

Tax on remcasurement of defined bencfit obligation

Dividends

Dividend distribution Lax

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Balance as at 1 April 2019

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020
Profit for the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligotion

Tax on remecasurcment of defincd benefit obligation

Dividends

Dividend distribution tax

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Asat Asal
Note 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
150.00 150.00
15 - -
150.00 150.00
Reserves and surplus
Capital q
General redemption Retained earnings ltems of OC1 Tutnl attributabiclio
reserve owners of Company
reserve

1,277.53 400.00 2,407.00 = 4,084.53

16 - 475 56 47556
B 181 - 1.81

= e (0.63) = (0.63)

16 - - (300.00) - (300.00)
16 - - (G167} - LG L6TY
1,277.53 400.00 152207 - 4.199.60

1,277 53 400 00 2,52207 - 4,199.60

16 - - 18627 186.27
(2.49) - 249)

. 073 - 073
16 (300.00) (300.00)
16 (61.67) X 61.67)
1,277.53 400.00 234491 - 4,022.44

The noles referred to above forms an integral part of the (inancial statements

As per our report of cven date attached

For BS R & Co. LLP
Charicred Accountanls
Frewe’s Rejgiersation N

%. 4.

Bhavesh Dhupelia
Partner
Membership No: 042070

IO 248T 00022

oA

Place : Mumbai
Date : 26 May 2020
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

John Frapcis Kelly
Chatrmicin
DIN No 07328087

ol

Company Secretary

Wikl

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 26 May 2020

CIN: U24230GJ2005PTC046246

vl
Ranjit Menon
Whole Time Dircctor

DIN No 08288625

Haeshendrn Punjr
VP Finance amd Accounts



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Statement of Cashflows
Jor the year ended 31 March 2020

In millions of INR

Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Inventory written off and provision for inventory
Capital work-in-progress written off
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Loss on scrapping of assets
Interest income
Provision no longer required written back
Gain on fair valuation of investments in mutual fund
Gain on sale of current investment
©
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets
(Increase) in other financial assets
(Increase) in loans to employces
(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions
Cash generated from operating activities

Income taxes paid (net)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities:

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment including capital creditors and capital advances

Expenditure on intangible assets
Interest received
Net gain on sale and fair valuation of investments

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities:
Dividend and dividend tax paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents (D)

Net increase in'cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April
ss: Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

466.43 615.63
109.14 144.03
89.47 91.05
1.76 0.15
36.13 18.92
0.31 0.05
(14.81) (18.36)
- (0.54)
(0.93) (3.16)
(30.62) (32.28)
656.88 815.49
145.63 (380.79)
25.07 463.57
(11.26) 2342
(158.03) (192.95)
(1.61) .
(131.25) (14.74)
1.91 (2.59)
2.03 (0.09)
6.74 (1.06)
536.11 710.26
(79.12) (205.75)
456.99 50451
(170.61) (234.14)
(0.84) (8.34)
4.84 18.36
31.55 35.44
(135.06) (188.68)
(361.67) (361.67)
(361.67) (361.67)
(16.02) (20.32)
(55.76) (66.16)
720.23 786.39
664.47 72023




Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Statement of Cashflows
Jor the year ended 31 March 2020

In millions of INR
Statements of Cashflows (continued)

Notes:

(a) Components of cash and cash equivalents Note
- Cash on hand 14 - -
- Balances with banks in current account 14 43.52 380.24
- Investment in mutual funds 12 620.95 339.99

664.47 720.23

(b) The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) -
Statement of Cash flow.

(¢) The Company has INR 700 million (31 March 2019 : INR 900 million) undrawn facilities with the bank to meet short term financing need
towards future projects to be executed by the Company.

(d) The investment in the mutual funds are consdered highly liquid in nature and have been classified as "Current Investments"
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Firm's Registratipn No: 101248 W/W-100022 Registration No: U24230GJ2005PTC046246
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i

Bhavesh Dhupelia John Francis Kelly Ranjit Menon

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

Membership No: 042070 DIN No. 07328087 IDIN No. {}328%
Swati Harshendra l‘uujli;ai
Company Secretary VP Finance amd Accounts

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad

Date : 26 May 2020 Date : 26 May 2020
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Company Overview

Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a Joint Venture between Cadila
Healthcare Limited and Hospira Australia Pty Limited, incorporated in Australia.

The Company is manufacturing anti-cancer formulations in Pharmez, Special Economic Zone near
Ahmedabad. The Company had started the commercial production on 1 May 2009.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on
the accrual basis of accounting except for certain financial assets that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently over all the periods presented in the financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the functional
currency. All the amounts have been rounded off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Investments in mutual funds Fair value through profit and loss

Employee defined benefits plans Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

Current — Non-current classification

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the conditions:

(a)  The asset/ liability is expected to be realized / settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(b)  The asset/ liability is expected to be realized/ settled within twelve months after the reporting
period;

(c)  The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date;

(d) In case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement
of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All the other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.
For the purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has

ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of services and
the, time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization in cash

w cash equivalent.

is %ft/
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(v)  Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, incomes and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

a)  Deferred tax expense :
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

b)  Current tax expense :
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted
profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

¢)  Measurement of employee defined benefit obligations :
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other long term benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

d) Fair valuation of investments :
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility.

e)  Recognition of MAT credit :
MAT credit has been recognized as there is reasonable certainty that MAT credit will be utilized
against future taxable income.

0 Property, plant and equipment :
Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company.
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s
expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of Company’s assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed periodically. including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life,
such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production or from a change in market demand of the product or service output of the asset. Refer

W(c) for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

i)

@

Measurement of fair values

A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair value,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair
value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the VP Finance.

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure
fair values, then the financial reporting team assess the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in
fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

A.  Level | - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

B.  Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices).

C. Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset ora liability, the Company uses obseryable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following
notes:

A. Note 37 - Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

B.  Note 36 - Measurement of employee defined benefit obligations

C.  Note 12 - Fair valuation of investments

Significant accounting policies
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of
Companies at exchange rates at the date of transactions or an average rate if the average rate
approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are

Vzﬁasurcd based on historical cost in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of

rhnsaction. Exchange differences are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments
(i)  Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially

other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially reco

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

recognized when they are originated. All
gnized when the Company becomes a

On initial recognition. a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of financial assets which are

recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its
statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cos

of the financial asset.
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognises a financial asset in its Balanc
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets

transaction cost are recognised in the
t are attributed to the acquisition value

e Sheet when it becomes party to the
are recognized initially at fair value, plus

in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Where the fair value of a financial asset al initial recognition is different from its transaction price, the
difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through a quoted
market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation
technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level |

or level 2 input as mentioned above, the

difference between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately and recogn ized as a
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a
change in factor that market participants take into account when pricing the financial asset.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at

transaction price.

Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below

criteria:
i The Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI
iii.  Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial

ssets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, and other financial assets of the
Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash receipts are exactly discounted to the initial
recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the maturity amount is
added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial asset over
the relevant period of the financial asset o arrive at the amortized cost at each reporting date. The
corresponding effect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as inferest
income over the relevant period of the financial asset. The same is included under other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any.

ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

a)  The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b)  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes
are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interest
income and impairment losses and its rev ersals in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCL is
reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss.

On Derecognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
not reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer

such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within equity.

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as
explained above. This is a residual category applied to all investments of the Company. Such financial
assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the follow ing

occurs:
i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;
ii.,  The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has

substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

iii. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset);

iv.  The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and

es not retain control over the financial asset.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

. Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognize
such financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the
Company also recognizes an associated liability. The financial asset and the associated liability are

measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations th

at the Company has retained.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured
at FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized

in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value
minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability.

Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is different from its transaction price,
the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the

Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fai
market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. |

r value is determined through a quoted
evel | input) or through a valuation

technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).

In case the fair value is not determined using a level |
difference between the fair value and transaction price is

or level 2 input as mentioned above, the
deferred appropriately and recognized as a

gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss arises due to a
change in factor that market participants take into account when pricing the financial liability.

Subsequent measurement:

All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method.

Under the effective interest method, the future cash payments

are exactly discounted to the initial

recognition value using the effective interest rate. The cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of the difference between the initial recognition amount and the maturity amount is
added to the initial recognition value (net of principal repayments, if any) of the financial liability over

the relevant period of the financial liability to arrive at the ar

nortized cost at each reporting date. The

corresponding effect of the amortization under effective interest method is recognized as interest
expense over the relevant period of the financial liability. The same is included under finance cost in

the Statement of Profit and Loss

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
W the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(¢) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition
at cost. Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at costs less
accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or
loss.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

(iii) Capital work — in — progress and Capital advances
Costs of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in
progress. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date
are disclosed as other non-current assets.

(iv) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Asset Management estimate
of useful life

Buildings — office 60 years

Buildings — factory 30 years

Plant and equipment (other than major 15 years
components accounted for separately)
Fixtures and fittings 10 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
aWted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed of).

(v) De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of its property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the item is derecognized.

(d) Intangible assets

(i)  Intangible assets
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

(i)  Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred.

(iii) Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values
over the estimated useful lives using the straight line method, and is included in depreciation and
amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of software is 6 years, which is as per schedule I1.
Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

(iv) De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of its property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the item is derecognized.

(e) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the weighted average formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and
condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of fixed production-overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished products.

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are
not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated
W the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable value.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

() Impairment
(i)  Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
. financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
. financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and
debt securities at FVOC]I are credit- impaired. A financial asset is 'credit- impaired' when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except

for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

s other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring
over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 365 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

£ the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
\(yy the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(i)

S the financial asset is 365 days or more past due

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent
to 'investment grade' or higher as per rating agency.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCL

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery
of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or
Company of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
‘ti:/urlisalion. if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(2) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under
short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably.

(i)  Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.

(iii)  Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order to
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement
of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(iv)  Other long term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment

benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the

current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value

of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent

actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements gains or losses are
cgdgnized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(h) Provisions (other than employee benefits) and contingencies

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obl igation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

(i)  Site restoration
The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in

the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

(i)  Onerous contracits
A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

Before such a provision is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible
obligation or a present obligation in respect of likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

(i) Revenue

(i)  Sale of goods:
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, The Company assesses promises in the contract
that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It
excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. In determining
the transaction price, the Company considers below, if any:

Variable consideration - This includes rebates, discounts, etc. It is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of each reporting period.

Consideration payable to a customer — Such amounts are accounted as reduction of transaction price
and therefore, of revenue unless the payment to the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or
service that the customer transfers to the Company.

Revenue is initially measured at floor price which is cost plus agreed mark up with the customer,
however if the customer’s actual selling price to its customers is greater than the floor price by the
agreed mark up, the Company is entitled for additional revenue. The additional revenue is recorded
when the same is measurable and it would not be unreasonable to expect the ultimate collection.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e.
Wthe passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(i)  Rendering of services
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss upon completion of services at the
reporting date.

(iiij)  Export benefits
Export benefits are recognised as income on all the eligible exports and where there is no significant
uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of relevant exports.

(i)  Recognition of dividend income and interest income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income, the offective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset
is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

(k) Income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in
respect of current tax and deferred lax.

(i)  Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items
of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and the items that are never taxable
or deductible under the Income tax Act, 1961. Current tax is measured using fax rates that have been
enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to
taxation authorities.

(i)  Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences
or there is convineing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecogn ised or recognised, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted

We reporting date.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(iii)

U

(m)

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets

on net basis or their tax assists and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Presentation of current tax and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case,
the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost) incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of asset, Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Finance lease

Leases where the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or
the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognized for an equivalent
amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a
constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year.

Land acquired on long-term leases

The Company classifies leasehold land as finance lease where:

° Initial amount paid is substantially equal to the fair value of land

o The Company has option to purchase the land at a price that is sufficiently lower than fair value
at the date option is exercisable

o Lessor has agreed to renew lease on expiry of lease term.

Leasehold land is recognized as an asset at the value of the upfront premium / charges paid to acquire
lease.

Operating lease
Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest

with the lessor are recognized as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in
line with the expected general inflation 50 as to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost

iWaseS.
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

Transition to Ind AS 116

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases which introduces single
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases subject to
recognition exemptions. The Company adopted Ind AS 116 Leases using modified retrospective
approach and practical expedients. Accordingly, the comparative information presented for the year
ended 31-March-2019 is presented as previously reported under Ind AS 17 - Leases.

At inception of the Contract, the Company assess whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception
of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the
contract involves the use of identified asset; (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from the use of the asset through the period of lease and (iii) the Company has right to direct
the use of the asset.

At the inception date, right-of-use asset is recognised at cost which includes present value of lease
payments adjusted for any payments made on or before the commencement of lease and initial direct
cost, if any. It is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. Right-of-use asset
is depreciated using the straight-line method from the com mencement date over the earlier of useful
life of the asset or the lease term. When the Company has purchase option available under lease and
cost of right-of-use assets reflects that purchase option will be exercised, right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss,
if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

At the inception date, lease liability is recognised at present value of lease payments that are not made
at the commencement of lease. Lease liability is subsequently measured by adjusting carrying amount
to reflect interest, lease payments and remeasurement, if any.

Lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate or interest rate implicit in the
lease, if the rate can be determined.

The Company has elected not to apply requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases that has a term of 12
months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. Lease payments of such lease
are recognised as an expense on straight line basis over the lease term.

(n) Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash-flow statement comprises cash and cheques in
hand, bank balances, demand deposits with bank where the original maturity is three months or less
and other short term highly liquid investments.

(o) Government grant
The Company is situated in Special Economic Zone (SEZ) accordingly. the Company is exempted
from the taxes on domestic purchases and imports such as Goods and Service tax, Customs duty etc.
Further the Company is also exempted from taxes on its exports except exports to Domestic Tariff
Area (DTA). The Company has received government grant in nature of revenue which is accounted
on net basis.

(p) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating
\rc}ources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

.y By
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and

In millions of INR

S5A

5B

Intangible assets and intan
Reconciliation of carrying amount

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 April 2018
Additions

Balance at 31 March 2019
Balance at 1 April 2019
Additions

Balance at 31 March 2020

Accumulated amortization
Balance at 1 April 2018
Amortization for the year
Balance at 31 March 2019
Balance at 1 April 2019
Amortization for the year
Balance at 31 March 2020

Carrying amount (net)
At 31 March 2019
At 31 March 2020

Intangible assets under development

Balance as at 1 April
Additions

Assels capitalized during the year
Wance as at 31 March

for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

gible assets under development

Software Total
12.93 12.93
30.50 30.50
43.43 43.43
43.43 4343

3.14 3.14
46.57 46.57
5.82 5.82
4.05 4.05
9.87 9.87
9.87 9.87
6.90 6.90
16.77 16.77
33.56 33.56
29.80 29.80

2020 2019
2.30 24.46
0.84 8.34
3.14 30.50
- 2.30




Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)
iIn millions of INR
6 Loans

Unsecured and considered good

Non-current

Loans to cmployees

Current
Loans lo cmployees

Total loans

7  Other financial assets
(unsccured, considered good)

Current

Other receivable rom related partics (refer note 38)
Other reccivable

Export incenlive receivable

Total other financial assets
8 Delerred tax assets (net)
A. Recognized deferred tax asscts and linbilities:

Deferred Lax assets and liabilitics are attributable to the following:

Deferred tax assets

As at
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

5

1.24
1.24
1.39

Asal
3] March 2019

150 80

0.01
6707
217.88

Asatl
31 March 2019

MAT credil entitlement (reler nole (¢} below) 333.09 536.19
On account of deferred cmployee related expenses 12.05 970
Tolal deferred lax assets (A) 345.14 545 89
Deferred tax linbilities
Difference between writlen down value of properly, plant and equipment and 65,84 67 81
intangiblc asscts as per the books of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961
Differcnce in carrying value and (ax basc of invesiments measured 0.27 110
at FYTPL
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 66.11 68 91
Net deferred tax assets (A-B) 279.03 476.98
B. Movement in temporary differences
Related to  Investments  On account of deferred  MAT credit Totnl
PPE and fair valuation employee related  entitlement
Intangible expenses
Balance as at 01 April 2018 (58.77) (274) 1033 536.19 485,01
Recognized in slatement of profit or loss for the ycar 2018-19 (10.04) 1.64 100 - (740)
Recognized in other comprehensive income for the year - (0.63) - (0,63)
2018-19
Balance as at 01 April 2019 (68.81) (1.10) 10.70 536.19 476,98
Recognized in statement of profit or loss for the year 2019-20 297 083 062 (162.10) (157.68)
Recognized in other comprehensive income for the year - - 073 - 073
2019-20
MAT credit ulilized during the year - (41.00) (+1.00)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 {65.84) (0.27) 12,05 EERNI 279.03
8 Deferred tax assets (net) (Continucd)
C. Minimum Alternative Tax [MAT] credit
The delails of MAT credit available and recognized are as below:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
MAT credit Yearof expiry  MAT credit Year of expiry
available available
AY 2012-13 854.69 2026-27 R54.69 2026-27
AY 2013-14 878.26 2027-28 87826 2027-28
AY 2014-15 490.00 2028-29 490.00 2028-29
AY 2015-16 60,20 2029-30 60.20 2029-30
AY 2016-17 44.12 2030-31 4412 2030-31
AY 2017-18 48.711 2031-32 4871 2031-32
AY 2018-19 26.47 2032-33 2647 2032-33
AY 2019-20 12.85 2033-34 2587 2033-34
Total 2,41530 2.428 32
Less: MAT credit utilised during the year 41.00 “
Less: MAT credit recognized 333.09 53619
MAT credit unrecognized (refer nole below) 2,041.21 1.892 13

eriedlt, amounting e INR
: able Incoine.

kalance MAT credif ety

33

343 09 million (31 Mureh 2019 INI 835 19 millioti} hin bee recogntzed ox ihere is resonabl cormty thas MAT credis will be utihyed
ment groyting to INF 200120 millon (31 March 200%
cognised mmee the Compaty belives, ihere will not be sullicent taxable profit 1o wtilis the sdilivenal credis

INR 1,892 |5 milluth) has vol begn raengmeed in



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)
In millions of INR

9 Other assets
(unsecured, considered good)

Non-current
Advance to cmployees for expenscs

Capital advances

Sccurily deposils

Current

Advance lo vendors for supply of goods and scrvices
Advance o cmployees for expenses

Prepanid expenscs

Balance with statulory authoritics

Total other assets

10 Income tax assets (net)

Non-current
Advonce payment of income lax (nei of provision 31 March 2020: INR
3,269.29 million : 31 March 2019: INR 3,199 81 million )

Total

11 Inventories
(AL lower of cost and nct realizable valuc)

Raw materials
Packing malerials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Asat
31 March 2020

245
14.91
8.09
25.45

8.38
152
13.86
1.27
25.03
50.48

Asat
31 March 2020

92.40

92.40

Asat
31 March 2020

835.43
94.45
85.52
91.38

1,106.78

Asal
31 March 2019

275
131
8.09
1215

Asal
31 March 2019

94.76

94.76

Asal
31 March 2019

1,079.04
88.66
110.10
64.08
134188

The cost of inventorics recognized as expenscs includes inventory writtcn ofT amounting to INR 66,72 million (31 March 2019: INR 82,33 miillion) and provision for expiry /
near cxpiry / obsoletc inventory amountinng to INR 22 75 million (31 March 2019: INR 35.41 million). There has been no reversal of such write down in current and

previous years

12 Investments

Current
Investments carried at lair value through prolit or loss
Investments in mutual (unds (unquoted)

Apggregate amount of unquoled iny - at cost
Ageregate amount of unquoted investments - at fair value

13 Trade receivables

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Total

All the trade reccivables are from refated parlies (Note 38)

Asat
31 March 2020

620.95

620.95

620.02
620.95

As at
31 March 2020

572.94
572.94

The Company's exposurc Lo credit risk, currency risk and loss atlowance related Lo rade receivables are disclosed in notc 38

14 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts
Cash on hand

Other bank balance

Balances with banks in current accounts*

Balances with banks in fixed deposit (with original maturity o morc than 3
months but less than 12 months)

Tatal

*A tien if\narfed at INR 9 64 million (31 March 2019 Nil) by the bank against issuance of delivery order

34

Asat
31 March 2020

43.52

43.52

9.64
400.90

410.54

454.06

Asal
31 March 2019

339.99
339.99

336.83
33999

Asal
31 March 2019

624 34
624 34

Asal
31 March 2019

38024

38024

20215
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

In millions of INR

15 Equity share capital
As at Asal
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Authorized
15,000,100 (31 March 2019 : 15,000,000) cquily sharcs of INR 10 cach 150.00 150.00
5,000 (31 March 2019 : 5,000) 7% non lative red blc prefc
shares of INR 100,000 cach SO0 S0HLO0

650,00 650.00
Jssucd, Subscribed and Paid-Up
15,011,000 (31 March 2019 : 15,000,000) cquity shares of INR 10 cach fully 150.00 130.00
poid up

150,00 150.00

A. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year

As at 31 Mareh 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Number of INR in millions  Mumiber of TR in milliops

shares shares
Equity shares at the commencement of the year 15,000,000 150.00  15.000,000 150,00
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - <
Number of shares at the end of the year 15,000,000 15000 15000000 1510 (11

. Rights, preferences and restiictions attiched to cquity shares

The Company ks Essiicd enly oge cluzt al cquity yhares having a por sl gl INR 10 pier share. Each bolder of the equiny hares i entitled fo e sote pet share In he event
of lignidation of ke Company, the holders of the equity shares will be eptitled 1o roccive remmmng asscty of the Compaty, afler distnbnition of all preleremial smounts. The
distribmtion will b in progortion ko (le mimber of cquity shies el by e shargholders, The Company declares and poys dividends m Indion fipecs. The dividend propesed

by the Board of Dircttgrs i3 subjeel lo the apprmviil to the sharcholdem m thie el Anmal General Mocting, eseepl i cite of inlerin dovidand.

Durinig tlie vear crdhed 31 Margh 2020, the amotit uf per share interim dividend recognized as distributions to cquity sharcholders was INR Nil, (31 March 2019 : INR 20)
negregating to INR N (31 Mareh 10119: INR 301 miltion)

During Ihe year ended 31 March 2020, thc amount af per share final dividend recognized s distributions (o cquily sharcholders was INR 20, (31 March 2019 : INR Nil)
aggregaling fo [NR 300 million (31 March 2019: INR Nil).

C. The details of sharcholder holding more than 5% shares Are set out below :

Aant 31 March 2020 Asat 31 March 2014
Number of " held of total shares  Number #f %= held of lotal shares

Name of the shareholder

shares shares
Cadila Healtheare Limited 7,300,000 50,00 7260,000° SR
Hospira Australia Pty Limited 7500000 ()00 7504 U 50,00
Total shares TSP 15, (L0040
16 Other equity
Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

General reserve 1,277.53 1,277.53
Capital redemplion reserve 400.00 400.00
Retained carnings 234491 2822467
Total 402244 Ao 9954

Asat Asal

General reserve

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening Balance 1,277.53 1,277 33
Addition during the year -

Deduction during the year - -
Closing balance 127753 1277153
Capital redemption reserve

Opening Balance 400.00 400.00
Addition during the year

Deduction during the year - .
Closing balance 400.00 400.00
Retained earnings

Opening Balance 2,522.07 2.407 00
Prafi for the year 186.27 47536
ftemeasurement of defined benefiL obligation (nct of lax) (1.76) 118
Dividends (300.00) (300 00)
Dividend distribution tax on dividend to cquity sharc holders (61.67) (61.67)
Closing balance 2,344.91 2.322.07

Description of nature and purpose of ench reserve

General resorves
General yeserve s crcaled from lime to ume by way of uarafer of profits from rclaincd carnings for appropriation purposc General reserye sis crcaled by transfer from onc
comprment al squily Lo another and is not an item ol othes comprchensive income

Capital redemption reserse:
This reservie s crcatzd [l redemption of preference sharcs  the financial year 2011-12

Remeasurements of defined henefit liability / (asset) through 0o
Reinian :‘:r)u . ol defined penefit liability / (asset) compriscs actiisrial gnns and losses and relura on plan asscts (excluding interest income)
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

In millions of INR

17 Provisions

18

19

20

Non-current
Provision for compensaled absences (refer nole 37
Provision for graluity bencfit (refer note 37)

Current
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 37)
Provision for gratuity benefit (refer note 37)

Total provisions

Trade payables

Current
Due to micro, small and medium enterprises (refer note no 32)
Due lo other than micro, small and medium enlerprise

The Company's cxposurc to currency risk and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in note 38.

Other financial liabilities

Non-current
Employee related liabilities

Current

Capital credilors

Employce related liabilities
Provision for Failure 1o Supply
Customer deposil

Other liabilities

Current
St
(meul

Tiabllities
| P-Ta, ESIC, TDS, 1C5, 1G5T)

Asat
31 March 2020

22.95
0.69
23.64

32.16

i

Asat
31 March 2020

6.84
168.83
175.67

Asat
31 March 2020

0.57
0.57
13.36

23.10

0.03
36.49

37.06

\
\

Asat
31 March 2020

|
|

Asat
31 March 2019
16.02
0.44
16.46
3.12
3.35
6.47
22,93
Asat
3] March 2019
9.40
304.13
313.53
Asat

3} March 2019

037
0.37

12.41
2127
114.39
0.03
148 10

\

|

148 47

Asat
31 March 2019

41
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

In mitlions of INR

21

Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations

March 2020 (Continued)

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Salc of products 2,203.28 2,563.45

Sale of scrvices 7.18 035

Sale of raw malerial 0.05 0,00
221051 2,563 80

Other operating revenue

Export incentives 5410 6583

Others [LEE] 16,0}

7303 Hing

Total revenue from operations 2.284.44 2 0ekd i

A. Details of sale value of goods

Goods sold

Formulation 2,203.28 2.563.45

Service income

Testing ond validation sery iccs 7.18 035

Raw material sold

Packing malerial 0.05 014

B The Company is siuated in Speciil Econotnie Zone (SEZ), Being # SEZ wnil. the Company ia requised |o fpllow the provisions enumernted in the Special Exonomic Zane
At 2005 {ihe Act) and e nules Famed thereander. Pursuant W provison of the Act, the Company is exempled from the 1aves on domeic purchises anl imparls sieh il
Goots andl Service e, Chitoms dity. ete. Further the Company t= alio exempied fiom LaNes on i exports exeeptexports to Dapestic TandT Ama (DT A) The Compamy han
petcived government grantm nmure af revenue which i sczounted onnel basts willi respect o followisg tes

22

23

24

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Custom duty 117.61 234 17
Goods and Scrvice Tax 15261 126 Tk
27022 36095

C. Disclosure relaling to IND-AS 115

Reconciliation the amount of revenue recognised in the stalement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Particulars
Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments
Sales return
Discounis
Rebales/refunds
I, .

Revenue from contract with customers

Other income

31 March 2020
2,210.51

31 March 2020

31 March 2019
2,563.80

2,563.80

31 March 2019

Gain on salc of current investments 30.62 3228
Gain on [air valuation of investments in mutual fund 0.93 316
Exchange Nucination gain (net) 49.19 5245
Provision no kiger required writlen back - 0354
Scrap sales 0.81 083
Tnterest on deposits 14.81 18,36
Interest received on income tax refund 0.42 .
Miscellancous income 69.30 117 49
166.08 225.11

Cost of material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Raw malerial 1,079.04 77238
Packing matcrial 88.66 103.92
Add: Purchase 1,000.22 1.598.12
Less: Inventory at the end of the year:

Raw material 83543 1,079.04
Packing material 04 43 %8.66
Cost of material consumed 1.238.04 1,306.72

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-

Inventory at the beginning of the year:

in-progress

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Work in progress 110.10 128 82
Finished goods 64.08 4702
Less : Inventory at the end of the yesr:

Work in progress 85.52 110.10
Finished| goods 2134 A.0R
Total {2.72) 1,60

wd &g



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

In miltions of INR

25

26

27

28

Employee benefit expenses

Salarics and wages

Contribution to provident funds

Expenses related to post employment define benefit plans
E; related to comp d ab

Staff wellare expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of right of usc assets
Amortisation of inlangible asscts

Other expenses

Consumption of storcs, spare parts and consumables
Power and fucl expenses

Repairs and mainicnance

- To buildings

- To machinery

- To others

Insurance cxpenses

Legsl and professional fees

Effluent treatment plant charges

Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below)

Exchange fluctuation loss (net)

Loss on scrapping of asscts

Capital work-in-progress wrillen ofl

Failure to supply charges

Corporale social responsibility expenses (refer note 34)
Miscellaneous cxpenses

(i) Payment to auditors

Payment lo auditors (exclusive of scrvice tax)
- as auditor

- Statutory audit

- Tax audit
- Reimbursement of expenses

Tax expenses

A. Income tax (income) / expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current tax
Current tax on profit for Lhe year

MAT credit written off

Deferred tax

Attributable to -

Origination and reversal of temporary difference

Deferred tax (expense)/benefit on fair value of equily investments
through stalement of profit and loss

Deferred tax p fbenefit on of defined
benefit liability (asset)

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit for the year is as under:

Profit before tax
Statutory 1ax rate
Teix oxgiense at slatutory tax rate

Adjustments

= Tas diffcrences bathveen narmal income tax and MAT

- Effeet af expenss mot daductabl in determining Laxable profit
-Effeet ol non-deductibli expenises

- Effect of arlditmaplafeduetkyn in taxable income

~Effeet of MAT crodit entiilensont written off

Reportilye Inconie Tay

ENggtive pax rite

31 March 2020

220.13
10.56
3.50
11.92
14.11
260.22

31 March 2020
101.57
0.67

6.90
109.14

31 March 2020

116.61

16.04
56.44
379.41

31 March 2020

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

210.86
9.80
5.18

-027
16.76
24233

31 March 2019
142.40
1 63
144.03

31 March 2019

150.65
81.01

15.72
3512

31 March 2019

0,90
010
0,03
1.03

31 March 2019

12248 13267
162.10 0.00
-2.97 1004
-0.83 -164
-0.62 -1.00
280.16 140 .07

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

466.43 615.63
29.120% 34.944%
135.82 21513

- -82 46
-4.42 740
-9.77 000
-3.57 000

162.10 000
280.16 140 07
60.066% 22752%

o ® g



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

In millions of INR

29

30

31

Earnings per shares

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculations of profil altributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share calculation are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit for the year, attributable to the equity holders in millions 186.27 475.56
Weighted average number of equity shares in full 15,000,000 15,000,000
Basic and diluted EPS 12.42 31.70
Contingent liabilities and commitments
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

A: Contingent liabilities
For Value added tax matters (note 1 & 3) 3.87 3.87
For Incomme tax matters (note 2&3) - -
3.87 3.87

Note | Value added wax matters
Sales tax department has raised demands by making disallowances. ‘The Company is contesting demand, in appeals, at various levels. However, based on the
internal assessment and advice received form external consultant, the Company does not expeet any linbility in this regard.

Note 2 Transfer pricing mutlers

Inconie o department hos raised demands aggregating to THR 623.07 millions (31 March 20197 INR 730.15 million). The Company is contesting demand, in
appeals at various levels. However, based on internal assessment and advice received fram external consultant, the Company does not expect amy liability in
this regard.

Note 3: Pending resolution of the respeclive proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash outflows, if any, in respect of
the above as it is determinable only on receiptof judgements / decisions pending with various forums / authorities.

B: Capital commitments

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Estimated amount of contracts, remaining to be executed, on capital account and not provided for (Net of
advances) 71.19 3164

Foreign currency exposure

The Company has not hedged its foreign currency exposure. Foreign currency exposures unhedged at the year end is as below:

As atBll March 2020 As at81 March 2019
( In Foreign ( In Foreign
Currency currency) { In Indian rupees) currency) ( In Indian rupees)
Receivables, advances and bank USD 8.46 638.98 1102 761 81
balance
EURO 0.14 11.66 - -
JPY 0.96 0.67 - -
AUD e _ - -
GBP L o - -
Payables usD 1.88 142.00 573 396.11
EURO 0.09 7.50 0.04 310

* Indiﬁs amount less than TNR 5,000

. e < @CD)



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)
In millions of INR

Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)
In millions of INR

32  Due to micro, small and medium enterprises

Under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came in to force from 02 October 2006, certain disclosers are
required to be made relating to Miero, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with management, outstanding

dues to the Micro and Small entérprise as defined in the MSMED Act, 2006 are disclosed as below.

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at the year end. 6.83 9.40
Interest due thereon 0.01 0,04
Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of scction 16 of the MSMED, along with the amount of the - -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting ycar
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the period) but without adding the inierest specified under the MSMED.
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year / period, 0.01 0.04

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years -

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition

of micro and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developiment Act, 2006 has been made in the Finangial statemint as at
31 March 2020 based on the information received and available with the Company. Auditors have relied upon the information provided by thie Company

33  Segment reporting

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Scgment Reporting", the Company is primarily engnged in a business of manulacture and sale of
anticancer formulations and has no other primary reportable segments. The Board of Directors of thc Company allocate the resources and assess the
performance of the Company, thus are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monilors the operating results of the business as a single
segment, hence no sepamite segment needs o be disclosed. Thus the segment revenue, segment result, 1otal earrying amount of segment assels, total carrying
amolnt of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquine segments 08sels, the total amount of charge for depreciation and umortization durning the year are
all as reflected in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and as on that date As the Company's revenue from domestic sales is less than

10% of total sales, no scparate geographical segment is disclosed

Revenue from one customers of the Company is INR 2,080 14 million (Revenuc from one customer in 31 March 2019 amounting to INR 2,443.45 million)

which is more than 10 percent of the Company's total revenue

34  Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenses

Based on the guidance note on accounting for expenditure on Corporate social responsibility (CSR) aetivitics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of
India and the saction 135 of the Companics Act, 2013, read with rules made thereunder, the Company has incurred the following expenditure on CSR

activities for the year ended 31 March

Particulars Amount spent: Direct or through [mplementing Agency As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 16.04 20.63
Details of amount spent during the ycar:
Promotion of Healthcarc Zydus Foundation 10.75
Promotion of Education International association for Human values 5.29 -
Promotion of Scientific Rescarch Gujarat cancer society = 10.63
Promotion of Education Ahmedabad education socicty - 10.00
Total amount spent during the year 16.04 20,63

Balance amount required to be spent by the Company during the year -

35 Transfer pricing

The Company's international (ransactions with related parties are at arm's length as per the independent accountants report for the year ended 31 March 2019
Managgment belicves that the Company's international transactions with related parties post 31 March 2019 continuc to be at arm's length and that the transfer

prwicgislaﬁon will not have any impact on these financial statcmﬁbts, particularly on amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation

e S




Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

In millions of INR

36 Related party transactions

The names of related parties with relationship and transactions with them:

A
I

1

I

Relationship:

Joint Venturer in respect of the Company
Cadila Healthcare Limited

Hospira Australia Pty Limited

Subsidiaries of joint venturer
Hospira Enterprises B.V.
Pfizer Australia Pty Limited
Pfizer Asia Manufacturing
Hospira Inc

Hospira (China) Enterprise
Pfizer Service Company BVBA
Pfizer Global Trading

Key Management Personnel:
Name
Mr. Ranjit Menon

Designation
Whole Time Director

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties referred in above in the ordinary course of business.

W

Sale of products

Cadila Healthcare Limited
Pfizer Service Company BVBA
Pfizer Global Trading

Sale of service - Testin';; and validation charges
Hospira Australia Pty Limited
Pfizer Australia Pty Limited

Sale of packing materials
Hospira Inc

Purchase of materials

Hospira Australia Pty Limited
Cadila Healthcare Limited
Pfizer Service Company BVBA

Reimbursement of excess recovery of non-saleble inventory
Pfizer Service Company BVBA

Reimbursement of expenses incurred on hehalf of the Company
Hospira Australia Pty Limited

Cadita Healthcare Linuted

Pfizer Sepvice Compuny BVBA

F

{ln INR Million)
31 March 2020 31 Murch 2019
38.03 34,32
2,080.14 2,443.46
85.11 85.67
0.49 0.35
6.69 =
0.05 -
- 373
0.09 1.51
- 47.28
1.78 B
7.52 1.36
0.56 1.08
“ 114.39

W
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)
In millions of INR

36 Related party transactions (Continued)

B The following transactions were carried out with the related parties referred in above in the ordinary course of business.

(Continued)
{In INR Million)
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
7  Other operating revenue - Others
Hospira Australia Pty Limited 17.78 16.01
Cadila Healthcare Limited 2.05 -
8  Recovery of non-saleble inventory and other charges
Hospira Australia Pty Limited 1.48 74.77
Pfizer Service Company BVBA - 4221
Hospira INC = 0.52
Cadila Healthcare Limited 69.60 -
9  Reimbursement of expenses received
Hospira Australia Pty Limited 7.19 0.66
Hospira INC - 0.64
Pfizer Asia Manufacturing - 1.63
Pfizer Australia Pty Limited 0.01 -
Balance outstanding at the year end:
10 Net trade receivable at the year end
Cadila Healthcare Limited 0.26 14.72
Hospira Enterprises B.V - 273
Hospira (China) Enterprise - 2.67
Pfizer Service Company BVBA 557.89 594.02
Pfizer Global Trading 14.80 10.20
572.95 624.34
11 Net other receivable at the year end
Cadila Healthcare Limited 23.08 -
Hospira INC 0.05 -
Hospira Auvstralia Pty Limited 17.88 108.16
Pfizer Service Company BVBA - 42.64
41.01 150.80
12 Net payable at the year end
Hospira Australia Pty Limited " 1.79
Pfizer Service Company BVBA - 132,62
Cadila Healthcare Limited - 0.54
i 134.95
13 Net advance to suppliers at the year end
Hospira Australia Pty Limited 0.12 011
Hosipra INC 0.72 0.66
Il Key Management Personnel 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 Remuneration 8.97 15,08
2 Post-employment defined benefit 2,30 2.16
3 Compensated absences 1.81 203

All transactions with these related partics arc priced on an arm’s length basis and resulting outstanding balances are to be settled in cash within
90 J.Iu].%{nﬂ! the teporting date

\
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Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(In INR Million)

37

Employee benefits
A. Defined benefit

Gratuity

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the gratuity plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employees salary and tenure of employment

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts recognized in the Company's financial statements as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March

2019:

Change in benefit obligations

Benefit obligations at the beginning of the year

Service cost

Interest expense

Actuarial loss (gain) due to change in financial assumptions
Actuarial Joss (gain) due to change in demographic assumptions
Actuarial loss (gain) due to experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Benefit obligations at the end of the year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Interest income

Transfer of assets

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Reconciliation of fair value of assets

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet

Expense recognized in profit or loss
Current service cost
Interest cost

Pr rements recognized in other comprehensive income
Due to change in financial assumptions

Due to experience adjustments

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
Salary growth rate

thdm\W

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

20.15 18.02
335 329
1.36 1.23
141 0.14
1.06 @17

(1.15) (0.36)

26.18 2015

1637 1521
1.20 115

., (2.39)

(0.02) (0.22)
5.00 298

(1.15) (0.36)

21.40 1637

26.18 2015

21.40 1637
4.78 378
335 329
0.15 0.08
3.50 337
141 0.14
1.06 @17
0.02 022
2.49 (1.81)

31 March 2020

6.45%

12.00% for next 1 years
and 9.00% thereafter

40% at younger ages
reducing to 1% at older
ages

31 Merch 2019

720%

12.00% for next 2
years and 9.00%
thereafter

40% at younger ages
reducing to 1% at older
ages

\



Zydus Hospira Oncology Private Limited

Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued)

(In INR Million)
37  Employee benefits (Continued)

Experience adjustment on Gratoity:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Delined benefit obligation 26.18 20.15 18.01 14.09 13.03
Plan Assets 21.40 1637 1520 1002 8.00
Surplus/{ Deficit) (4.78) (3.78) (281) (+.07) (5.03)

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Increase Decrease Increase Pecrensa
Dizeount rate (0.5% movement) 25,22 27.19 19.48 20.86
Salary growth rate (0.5% movement) 27.16 25.23 20.84 19.85
Attrition rate (0).5% miyverent) 25,72 26.68 19.81 20.52

The sensitivity analvses presented above may not be repreacniative of the setual change m the defined benelit abligntion ns it is unlikely that the chinge n assumptions
would acetr in isolation of ane another as some of the assumptions miay lse eomelated. Furthermore, m presentmg the above semsitivity sanalyats, the present value of the
defined benefit obligation has been caleulated using the projected unit eredit method at the end of the reporting pefind, which is the same-as that gpptied m-caleulating the

defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

The Company’s Gratuity Fund is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India, The plan assets under the fund are deposited under approved securities

The expected rate of return on assets is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return on investment of the fund, during the estimated term of

The expected contribution in next year is INR 4 78 million (31 March 2019: INR 3 79 million)

The albiligations are measuicd at the

present value of estimated future cash flows by using a discount rate that is determined with reference to the market yields at the

Balance Sheet date nn Government Bonds which s consistent with the estimated terms of the obligation

The estimate of future salary increase, considered in the actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, security, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and

demnand in the employment market

B. Other long term benefits
Leave benefits

Amount of INR 11 60 million (31 March 2019: INR -0
the statement of profit and loss

27 million) towards leave benefits is recognized as an expense and included in “Employee benefits expense” in

31 March 2020
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate
Salnry growth rate

6.45%
12.00% for 1 years and
9.00% thereafter

40% at younger ages
reducing to 1% at older
ages

Atlrition rate

31 March 2019

720%
12 00% for 2 years
and 9.00% thereafter

40% at younger ages|
reducing to 1% at
older ages

C. Contribution to provident fund

Amnunj of TN 1056 million (31 March
benefils

%.’11\970" in the statetnint of profit and loss.

e,
S/

4319 INR 9 80 million) paid towards contribution to provident fund 1s recognized as

an expense and included in "Employee

v g,
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